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Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Finandiat Statements of Sintex-BAPL Limited
{hereinafter referred to as the *Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries {Holding Company and its
subsidiartes together referred to as “the Group™ as mentioned in Annexure to this report), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31™ March 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year than ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, induding a summary of significant accounting polities and other
explanatory informnation thereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements®).

in our apinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate finandal statements of such
subsidiarias as were audited by the other ayditors and based on management certified accounts for
entities where an external auditor was not mandated, the aforesaid consolidated finangial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting prindples generatly
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31™ March 2020, of its
consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consclidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) spedfied under section 143{10) of the Act. Gur responsibifities under those SAs are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of tndia together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfiliad our other ethical
responsibilties in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

opinion.
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Emphasis of matter

We draw your attention to the following qualification to the audit opinion an the financial
statements of Mjs BAPL Rototech Private Limited, 2 sobsidiary of the Holding Company, isued
by an independent firm Mjs ASF & Co Chartered Accountants, for oot appoimting an
independent director as required by the Companies Act, vide its Report dated 25-06-2020
reproduced by them as urder: _
W drirw attention 1o Note NO. 42 to the finencial statenmnt with respect o non-complionce of
provvision of the Companies Act. The company is i process of complying with the requiverments. The
confravention of the said provisions may wtract the fines and penaities and imprisonrents o both
under the relevant provisions of Companies Act. Pending application for compounding Jor the seid
contravention, we are unable to comwent on the finarcicl impect on ot of the non-
compiiance” -

We dvaw attention to Note 48 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, As detelled in said
notes, Sintex-BAPL Limited had acvounted for the 'Sintex’ Brand in its books of accounts.
{rring the year the Company has obtained independent vahustion report for impainnent
testing of ‘Sirtex’ (Brand), having indefinite useful fife, relating to the recoverabie value of the-
‘Sirtex” brand. During the year i.e. in October anag, the management had disposed s entire
equity holding in Sintex NP SAS, a wholly-owned step down subsidiary, whose esthmated foture
revenues were oritinaily incuded for determination of the recoverable value of the brand. An
independent assesument through an authorized valuer reflacted the carrent value of the suid
brand at Rs. 700 crores; resuttantly Sintex-BAPL. Limived has recognized an impalement ioss of
Rs. 800 Croces to reflect the cartying value of the brand. We have relied upan the repart of the
independent valuey, being a sublect matter expert. '

We draw attantion to Note ;6 of the Cansolidated Financial Statemaents which states thae,

detailed in the note, regarding non-compliance of Forsign Exchange Management Act, 1999 in-
the case of Sintex-BAPL Limited. The company is presently in the process of regularizing the

samne. This report does not indude provisions in respect of Habilitiegjpenaltiesflevies, if any, that
may arise in this regard, as management is of the view that there would not be any significent

penalty for the same.

as at year end has a net current liabiity pasition, wherein the company has defaulted in
repayirrent of dues to lenders in respect of its borrowings, as a result of which the account with
these lenders have been classified as a NPA during the year. Resultartly, all ouistanding
amounts trasards the banks have been dassified as curvent by the Company in the Staterwent.
We also draw attention to Note no. 49 to the accompanying inancial staterments, wherein the -
company defaulted on interest payments towards Debentures as intimated to tive exchanges
during the year

We diraw attention 1o Note 47 of the Consolidated Financial Statements wivich states that,
deinng the period under review, the Holding Company through Sintex Holdings BV, has

completed the transaction towards sale of the entire equity holding of, Simtex NP SAS, onagth

Dctober, 2039 and & consideration of Euro 155 Million has been received by its wholly



subsidiary, Sintex Holdings BV. Qut of the said proceeds Euro 55 miltion are lying with the bank
accourtts held ynder the name of the said subsidiary a5 on 31.03.2020, as per management.
representation.

We draw attention to Note 57 of the Consolidated Finandal Statements which states that, as
per the managament, they are in the process of rescolving the liquidity & Gash flow issues by
identifying & disinvesting assets strategically and hence has 3 positive utiook towards the
future Garsly flows & tumaround. Accardingly, the accompanying reports have been prepared an
a going concermn hasis by the Group.,

We draw atterdion to Note g1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements which states that, the
Group has reversed the deferred tax Gabllity to reflect the net deferved tax assets position,
being available for offset between four to tweive years. Despite ongoing finencisl Gifficulties
expecienced by the Group, the mansgement. is of the view that with the tumaround of business
the said credit shafl be available to Group. Similarly MAT credit is recognized as deferred tax
asset by the Group which is available for offset between four t0 twelve years. Despite ongoing
financial difficuities aperienced by the Group, the managament is of the view that with the
tumaround of business, the said credit shall be available to the Group.

We draw attention to Note so of the Consolidated Financial Statements, The management has
considered intermal and external information upto the date of resuits dadared for the paviod .
ended 315t Manch, 2020 in respect of the current and estivnated future ionpat, including indlan
SCONOMIC indicators, consequent to the global health Pandemic of Covid-19. The acuil impact
of the pandemic may be different fror that considered in view of the highly uncertein ectnomic
environment and the evolving scenario.

We diaw attention tn Nate 52 of the Consolidated Financial Statements which states thet, the
Holding Company has not transferred any amount to "Debenture Redermption Reserwe’ on
account of et 1053 pasition during the year.

We draw attantion to Note 5 of the Consolidated Financial Statements which states that, the
Group had obtainved an sdditional working capital loan of Rs. 130 croves om: » lender, of which
Rs. 98 crores out of this was piaced as inter corparate deposit (KDs) with Siatex industries
Limvted (SiL.} on which interest has been acoryed and is pending recavery.

We draw attertion to Note 55 of the Consolidated Financial Statemants which states that, the
Graup has neither provided not spent any amount towards Copoarate Sockl Respansibility on
acogunt of liquidity & cash flow problems.

We draw attention to Note 55 of the Consclidated Finencial Statemarnts which states that, the
Group has recorded bomowing of Rs. 719.94 Croves (amourt 35 at 30th September, 2019)
towards discounting facility sanctioned by Axis Bank Limited vide sanchion letter dated 23th
September, 20a7 by adjusting reserves and surplus, for the value of priccipal outstancing, sece
it pertains to varkier years. interest on the same has heen provided in profic and loss account and
out of which Rs. By.07 crores pertains to sarfiec years. The said amount has bean disciosed as
Prior Pericd Expenses on the face of the Statement of Profit & Loss.




e We draw attention to Nate 53 of the Consolidated Financial Statements which states that,
during the year, the Group had identified inventacies which did not meet the quality parameters
and were rendeved unutable. These stacks were either scrapped Off duving the year or
recogrized at cost or NRV, whichever is less.

«  We deaw attention to Note 52 of the Consolidated Fnancial Statemaents which states that
Aithough previously applicable, this is the first year of consolidation and hence comparative
figures have not been presented in the azcompanying consolidated finandat statements. While
conducting the exsrdse of consalidation, notionai receivabies posted by the Holding Company
in the names of Sintex Holdings B.V.{Rs. 3.86 crores, rounded) and its subsidiary Sintex NP SAS
{Rs. 3.28 uores, rounded) for tax computations being notional in natire Jid not recondlle. As
per the management, sald balances will be subsequentiy reversed in the next financial yesr to
reconcile said amounts.

e As per the managenent, since the thresholds of local laws for Sirtex Holdings B.V.
{Netheriands) & Sintex Logistics LLC (USA) for autit are not achieved, mansgement certifind
actounts have been considered.

QOur Dplevion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters ave those matters that, in our professional judgment, weve oF mast significance i -
our audit of the standalone finandal statements of the current year. These matters were addressed

in the context of our audit of the stand-alone financial statement 35 & whole, and in forming owr
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separste opinion on these matters.

How the matter was wiinessed is ouravdt

Impainoeat  tesking o e hﬂnﬂwdﬂnﬂm&ﬁn“ﬂ“
See Note 6 m the Cmmlidated Flnandai applied the following audit procadures in this
Statements. area, among others to obialn sufficent
appropriate SugE evidence:

The Group has recognized goodwill of Rs. 20.18 | A. assessing the sppropristeness of the
Cr and Brand of Rs. 700 crores accouriting policdes in  vespect of |

The annual impairment testing of goodwill and | B.
bravdd 5 considered to be a key audit matter due
fo the compiexity of the atcounting requirements
and tie significart pxigment required in
| determining the assumptions to be used to
estimate the recoverable amount.




assamphions of valuation, wivich inchaded
comparing the weighted-average cost of
capital with sector aversges for the _

rate, teeminal year growth rate.

The Group has recogrnized MAT credit of Rs.
on6yCr.

The recognition of the MAT Credit Entidement |
involves significant judgrent as to the exemt
there is convincing evidence that the company
wiif generate future taxabie profies sufficent to

utilize deductible temporary differences, tax |

credits and tax losses (hefure they expire)

We have determined this as a key audit matter,
due to yncertainty in forecasting the amount and
timing of Rrture taxable profits and the reversal of

Testing of datk covenants The Grouwp has
significant amoumnt of outstanding of botrowing of
Rs. R5 2429.77 Cr. Since the overall borrowing is
significant with financial covenants as key audit
matter.

In the view of the significance of the matter we
applied the following asudit procedures in this |
area, among others to obtein  sulficiem
appropriate audit evidence:

A. enluating and testing the design and | |
implementation of controls in respect-of | -
tompiance with dabt covenants.

8. Sending independerzt balance
confirmations to the lenders and bankars
for balances as at 3x3j.aoan, which |
remained un-respanded by themn and |
hence reliance was plated upon the besk |
account statements fumishad by tw
company.

classification of borrowings as Long Term from
lenders who did not confirn continuance of

Bark

As at 31.3.3020, the company has dassiled ok |
borrowings from banks as current, sinoe the |
account tiumed into a Non-Parforming Asset in |




information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information induded in the holding Company's
annuat report, hue does not include the fingndial staternants aad our auditors’ repoct thereon.

mwmmmecmmﬁdmwmmmm:mﬁwm&ﬁmﬁﬁﬂu
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financal statements, our respansibiiity is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or -
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consclidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsibile fer the preparation
and presentation of these consolidated finandial staterments in term of the requirements of the Act
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit and other
comprehensive income, consolidated staternent of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows
of the Group in accomdance with the accountiag principles generally accepted in india, including the
indian Accounting Standards {ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are respomaibie for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
irreguidrities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are easonable and prudent; and the desigr, implementation and maistensnce:
of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting recornds, relevamt to the greparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fravd or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, X sforesaid.

in preparing the consclidated financial statements, the respective management and Goard of
Directors of the Companies induded in the Group are responsible for assessing the abillity of each .
company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relaked to going concerm
and using the going concem basis of aocounting uniess management either inbends 36 lquidete the
Compaty or to cegse operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Themsaeaimﬂoudofmmsdthemmmnﬁmmmﬁwﬁr
overseeing the finandial reporting process of each comparty.




Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to Ghtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financiel
statements a5 a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or srvor, and to -
issue an autitor's report that incudes our opinion. Reasonable assucance i 3 Mgh leved of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a matedial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from Baud or amor and e
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be apecied to
influence the #conomic dedsions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Rnancial
statements.

Mm#mﬂmm&m%ﬂsmm-mmﬂ.m

L

identify and assess the risks of material odsstaternent of the consolideted finaecal
statemnents, whether due to frand or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
ta those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficent and appropriste to provide » basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstarement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from emror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentionsl
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal comtral,

Qbtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to Jesign audR:
procedures that are appropriate in the drcumnstances. Under section 15303)0) of the Ak, we
are also responsibie for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
imermat finandal controls with reference to finandial statements in place and the opersting
effectiveness of such controls.

MMWémmMMMMﬁ
accoumting estimates and rlated disdosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropristensss of managament's use of the going concem basis of
accousting in preparation of consolidated financial statemnents and, based on the Judk
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty odsts related to everts or conditions
that may cast significent doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. if we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated finandial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conchusions are hased on the sudit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, sture evervs or conditions may
cayse the Grovp (Company and subsidiaries) to ceave to continue s 3 going concem.

EUMMMMMWW&WW_M-
represert the underlying vensactons and events in 3 manner that achiowes fir
presertation.

mmwmmmwﬂEWImmdm
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divection, supervision and performance of tive audit of financial information of sech entities. -
For the other ertities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by cother auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and pedformance of the audits camried out by them. We remain Solely
Materiatity is the magnitude of misstatements in the finantial statements that, individually
or In aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeshle user of the financial statements mey be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factarsin _

® Planning the scope of our audit work and in svaluating the results of our work; and
@) To evaluate the effect of any identiied misststements in tha Snasial stateents.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities induded in the consolidated finandal statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and signicant sudit
findings, inchading arvy sigrificant deficencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a staternent that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements reganding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonabiy be thought to bear on owr independence, and
where applicable, related safequards.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary company, whose financiel statements
refiect total assets of Rs. £6.86 crores as at 1™ March 2030, total revenues of Rs. 39.73 crores and
net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 6.58 crores for the year ended on that date, s considered in-the
consplidated finandal statements. These financlal statements have been audited by ather auditors
whose reports have beert fumished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidetad
ind AS financial statements, in 5o far as it relates to the amounts and disdiosures inchaded in respect
of these subsidiaries and cur report. in terms of sub-section {3} of Section 143 of the Act, insofaras it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the ather auditars.

{b} We did not audit the fingndal statements of 1{One) sulisidiary company (ocuding a(0ne)
stepdown subsidiaries) located outside india whose financial statement reflect total assets of 35 44
Croves as at 32* March 2020, total revenues of Rs. £3.46 aares and net cash inflows amaunting to
Rs. 25836 crores for the year ended on that date which have been prepared in accendance with
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries and which have not been
audited as per the applicable law in that tountry. These unaudited financial statervents have been -
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated annual Gmancial
statements, in so far as it miates o the amounts and disclosures induded n nespact of these -
subsidiaries is based solely on such unaudited finandat statements.

The Subsidiaty Company’s management has corwverted the financial staternents of such subsidiary
iocated outside india from Other GAAP to accounting principles generally accepted in india for the
year from 1™ April 2039 to 1= March 2020. Subsidiary company™s managermnent has reviewed these
conversion adjustments. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs «
subsidiary located outside india is based on the Managemesnt Certification.




Qur opinion an the consolidated financial Staterwants, and our report on Other Lagal and
Regulatory Requirements below, ismmmm&mmmmmmm
reliance on the wark done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on otr audit and on the consideration of
reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries 25 were
audited by othar auditors, as noted in the ‘Other Matters” paragraph, we raport, to the
mxtent applicable, that:

{a) Except for the effects of the matter desaibed in the Basis for Qualified Gpinvon, we have
sought and obtained 2 the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and bhelief were necessary for the purpases of owr audit of the sforesaid
consolidated finandial statements.

(b} Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion, i our
apinion, proper books of accownt as required by faw relating to preparation of the afosesald
consolidated finzaciat statements have been kept 5o for 35 it sppears fromy our sxarisation
of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

{c} Except for the sffects of the matter described in the Basis for Oualified Opinion, the
consolidated balance sheet, the consclideted staternent of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in aquity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
finandal statements.

{d) Except for the effects of the matter destribed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion, i our
opifion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements compiy with the ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

{e) On the basis of the written rEpresentations received from the directors of the Holding
Compatry as on 3™ March 2020 taken on record by the Board of Girectors of the Nuolding
Company and the report of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated in indla is disqualified as on 11* March 2020
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Ack.

{f) With respact to the adequacy of the internal fimantial controlt with reference o financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies incorporated in Indé2 snd the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annesure A”.

8. With respect 1o the other matters to be induded in the Auditor's Report in accordence with
Rute 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, i our apinion and to the hest of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
mammammmmmmwdm '

subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Gther Matters’ paragrph:




() The consolidated financial statements disciose the impact of pending litigations as at ;%
March 2020 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 38 to the

{i} Group did not have any long-term contracts induding derivative contracks for which there

(i) There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the investor Education and
Pratection Fund by the Holding Compacy or its subsidiary companies incorporated in india
during the year ended 21% March ro20.

{iv) The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings a5 welt as
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 Novernber 2016 to ya December
2016 have not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the
financiat year ended 31 March 2020.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16)

In our opinion and acrording to the information and explanations given 0 us and based on the
reports of the statutery auditors of such subsidiary company incorporated in indta which were not
audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company, s
subsidiary companies, to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule ¥ of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company, s
subsidiary companies is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V
of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 190006
which are requsired to be cormmented upon by us.

FOR, PIPARA & COLLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
._FRN No. 107929W/W1002149

>

Naman Pipara

PARTNER
- M.No. 140234
UDIN: 20140234AAAAHZ G159

Date: 31 August, 2020
Ptace: Ahmedabad




ANNEXURE to Independent Auditors Report on Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended March, 31 2020

List of entities included in the Statement
Subsidiary Entities

BAPL Rototech Private Limited

Sintex Holdings 8.V. (Netherands)

Sintex Logistics LLC (USA}

Sintex NP SAS {ceased to be a stepdown subsidiary of Sintex-BAPL Limited througl Sirvtex -
Holdings B.V. w.e.f. 24® October, 2019}

pw e




Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph a(f) under the heading *‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
SINTEX-BAPL LIMITED on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended

March 31, 2020

Report on the internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”}

We have audited the internat financial controls over financial reporting of SINTEX-BAPL LIMITED:
{hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company~), as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with oor audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended onthat date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary company management is-
responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal finandiat controls based on the internat control
over financial reporting Criteria established by the Holding Company considesing the ssumitial
componeins of internal control stated in the Guidiance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issved hy the institute of Chartered Actourtants of india. These
responsibifities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
comtrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficent conduct of its business,
including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safequarding of its assets, the preventicn
and detection of frauds and errors, the acturacy and completeness of the accounting reconds, and
the timely preparation of reliable finandial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2033

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accondance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Finantial Cordrols Qver Financiatl Repurting the “Guidance
Note") issyed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india and the Standards on Aauiiting
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
intemnal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
adequate intemnal financal controls over financial reporting was establisired and maireained and if
such controls operated effectively in alt matedial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedyres to obtain audit evidence abast the adequaty of theimernal
finandial controls system over finandat reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over fnancial reporting induded obtaining an understanding of intemal
finandial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a matevial weakness exists, and -
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the awditor's judgement, inchuding the assessment of the risks of
mateniai misstaternent of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or ever.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffident and appropriate to provide 2 basis
for our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal finandial controls systern over financial

reparting. h\




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Sinandial
statemnents for exdemal purposes in accordance with generatly accepted accounting principles. A

company's internai financial control over financial reporting indudes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect

the transactions and dispositions of the assets ofthe company; (2) provide regstinable assorgnee thet

tramsactions are recorded as necessary to pernit preparation of finandial statements in accondance -
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that recsipts and expenditures of the cormpany

are being made only in accordance with avthorisations of management and directors of the

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the cormpany’s assets that covld have a material effect

on the financial staternents.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over finendial repotting, induding
the possibility of coltusion or improper management override of convivols, maberial misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of asvy evaluation of the
internal financial comtrols over financial reporting to future periads are subject to the risk that the
internal finandcial control over finantial reporting may become madeguate becayse of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the palicies or procedures may deterionate.

Opinion

In our apinion, to the best of our information and according to the aplanations given to us, the
Holding Company has, in all material vespects, an adequate internal financial controls systeen over
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the criteria for intemal financial control over finencial
reporting established by the Holding Company considaring the essemtial componevas of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermnat Finandal Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 153(3)(1) of the Act on the adequaty and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statemaents of the Holding Company, insofaras
#t relates to 2 subsidiary company, which is company incorporated in India, is besed on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary and in cases where the components are
unaudited and based overseas, no such tests have been conducted and managenment representations
have been relied upon.

FOR, PIPARA & COLLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
~-ERN No. 107929W/W100219

(™=~

Naman Pipara
PARTNER
M.No. 140234
UDIN: 20140234AAAAHZg159

Date: 1™ Augqust, 2020
Place: Ahmedabad




Sintex-BAPL Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31 March 2020
{Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)
Particulars Note q 31 March 2020 £
Asgsetx
Non-current assels
(a) Propesty, plant and equipment 4 1,795.69
(b} Capital work-in-progress 5 6.14
{¢c) ROU Assets 4 19.83
(d) Goodwill i & 20.18
(e) Other intangible assets ” 710.44
(f) Financial assets
(i) Loans 8 17270
(i) Other financial assets 9 0381
(2) Deferrod tax assets (net) 33D 91.20
(h) Other non-curment assets 11 435 |
1,321.34
Corrent assets
{a) ventories 12 160.00
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables i3 193.41
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 14 57644
.(iif) Bank balanoes other than (ii) above 15 043
(iv) Other financial assets 9 7.14
(c) Curment tax assets (net) 16 49.40
(d) Other cerrent asseis 11 3961 |
1,826.43
Total assets i 3841.77
Equity and Gabifit
Ecuit
(a} Equity share capital 16 _ 16.03
(b) Other equity ] 17 45732
| Equity attributsble o owpers of the Company 47335
Non-controfling interests 44 411}
4146}

v Ap e AN T




Sintex-BAPL Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued...)

as af 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indisn Rupecs in Crores)
!- Iioln T T
Non-currenat Linhilities
(@) Financial linbilit
(i) Borrowings 18 5244
(ii) Other financial liabilities 19 703
(® Provisions w0 | 23.76
5323 %
Current Eabilities
(2) Fmmcial linbilitics
(i) Borrowings 18 2,053.30
(ii) Trade payables 23
{a) total cutstanding dues of micro 1631
and small enterprises; and
(b) total outstanding ducs of croditors 204.03
other than micro and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial lighilites 19 93389}
{b) Provisions 10 296
(c) Other current Liahilities 22 76.15L
328708
3,370.31
Total equity and Esbilities 3.5847.77
Basis of preparation, measarement and L 13
ipmificant G Eci
The notes refesred above are an integral part of these 53
As per our repoit of even dale sttached
¥For Pipars & Co LLP For st on bekalf of the Bonrd of Divectors
Chartered Accountants Sintex-BAPL Limited
FRN No: 167929W/W100219 . . CIN U25199GR2007PLCO5 1364
il T ot
Partner Directar Company Secreiamy
M No: 40234 DIN: 00171193
UDIN : 20140234AAAAHZOIS9 |
Place : Abmedabad Bijava Pradeep Shah
o> Direct Chief Fi al Off

Date: 31-08-2029 DIN: 08553621



Sintex-BAPL Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Jor the Year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)
. Yoor caded
Particalars Note 31 March 2420
Continning Operations
1 [income
I jRevenue from operations 3 2 T0
Il JOther income 24 36.67
v otat Income 929.37
a d‘m:alsconmed 25 49553
b [Purchases of stock-in-trade 26 8.68
anges in inventories of finished goods, work-in- progress and 12642
¢ . 27
d mpioyee benefits expense 28 144.04
e [JFinance costs 29 3352 ¢
f [Depreciation and amortisation expense kit R
g {Other expenses 3 31LTS
V  {Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items aad tax (629.
Prior Period items 8907
VI Faceentio items 32 12.60
vi [Profit/ (Los) before tax (Tar.13y
VI FIax expenss: 33A
a rrerst fead .2
Short Provision for tax of earlier years 881
b JDeferred tax (credit) (111.54)
AT Credit reversed / (recognized)
Mat Credit
at Credit of carlier years
IMAT Credit reversed / {recognised) {0.15
otal tax expeuse (11139
X ¥ m!ﬂ.w}lhmhnmm 1T
Discontinued Operations
X ﬁt:‘(loss)ﬁomdlsommnuedopemhons 6136
XI [Tax expense of discontinued operations 10.78
XTI §Profit / {(Loss) after tax from discoutineed operations 34 50.58
Xl fProfit/ (Loss) for the Year mlﬂl
X1V jOther comprehensive imcome 35
pntinning Operstions
A(i) Jitems that will not be rectassified subsoquently to profit o loss (ﬁnﬁ
i e-roeRs: ANy Of&ﬁmtﬂm{m’fm (072
i Mmmmwm -
G income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 0.27
profit or loss
Re-megsuramvonts of defined benefit {asset) / habihity
Equity Instroments through Other Comprehensive Income
R{i)} fitesns that will be reclassifiod subsequently to profit or loss
Exchenge differenccs in transiating the financial statemonts of forcign
onerations
(i) | Income tax relsting to itcms that will be reclassified to profitor loss




Sintex-BAPL Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (Continued...)
Jor the Year ended 31 March 2020

{Cumency: indian Rupees m Crares)

iscontinued Operations I -
er comprehensive income/ (Loss) for the Year, net of tax 56.65
XV §Total comprehensive income/ (Loss) for the Year 12.51
fContinued Operations (563.09)
Discontinued Operations 50.58
Continuing & Discontuing Operations (s12.31)f
XVI |Profit for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the company (536931}
- Nou controlling interests _ 0,15
(568.16)}
Xvn comprehensive imcome for the year attribatable to:
- Orwmners of the company 56.61
- Not controlling intevests 0.04
54.65
NV [Total comproheasive inoome for the year sitributable to :
- Owners of the company (512,709
- Non controlling interests ' 0.19
(5151
XX jEarmings per equity shave (From continviag aperation) 37
[Nominal value of share Rs.1 (31 March 2019 : Rs. 1) each]
Basic (in Rs.) (386,
D luted {inRs.) (386
XX rRings per equity share (from discontinued operation) 37
Basic (in Bs.) 35S
‘luted(m‘[{s) 31355
Farnings per equity shave (from discontinved & continving
RXT L eration) 37
Basic (in Rs.) (355.01
Diluted (in Rs.) @ss.mq
Basis of preparstion, measarement and sigaificant accountiog 1-3
e
The notes referred above are an integral part of these consolidated 458
financial staternents.
As per our repart of even date attached
For Pipara & Co LLP For and on bokalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accounsants Sintex-BAPL Limited
FRN No: 107929W/W1 : CIN 1F25199GI2007PLCOS 1364
aman Pipara Rabui A. Patel C\Z’w
Partner Director Company Secrettry
M No: 140234 DIN: G0171198

UDIN : Z0140234AAAAHZO1ISY

onrrerrd 2 b P o okt

i)amclm Chicf Finamcial Officer
DIN: 085533621
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Sintex-BAPL Limited

Consolidated Statement of cash flows
for the Year ended 31 March 2020

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

Partienlars 31 March 2026{
Cask flows from operating activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax {T3LI3N
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 98.84

Provision for doubtful debis & Bad Debt 75.07

Insterest income {9.74)

Gain on Sale of Subsidiary (787.40)

Lassi{Gain) on sale of item of property, plant and equipment

(net) 0.60

Impairment £00.00

Finance costs 313.52

(perating Profit/(Loss) before working capital changes (240.24))
Waorking capital adjustments :

(Increase) / decrease in financial and non-financisl assets 0.21

(Increase} / decrease in loans given (34.45

{Increase) / decrease in inventories 137.01

{Increase) / decrerse in irade receivables 13613

Increase / {decrease) in trade payebles (.12

Increase/(decrease) in provisions, financial and non-

Enancial iabilities (238.373
Income tax paid (net) {1 '
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (A) (245.26)]
Cash flows from investing activities

Inferest received 143

Proceeds from sale of current investments 0.19

Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment

and other intangible assets (22.41)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and

other intangible assets 240

Proceeds from disposal of subsidisry company 1,215.25
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (B) 119685
Cash flows from finawcing activities

Interest paid (171.94)

Proceeds / (repayment) of current borrowings (net) 85.85

Proceeds from non-current borrowings 100.00

Repayment of non-current borrowings (736.49)]
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C) ('m.sa)!
Net {decrease)} / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+() 22902
Cash and cash equivalents st 1 April 327.32
Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents| 20.53
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March




1. The above Consolidated Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method” as set out in Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

2.  (Cash and cash equivalents comprises of

Balances with banks:

- Corrent accounts 576.32

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three -

Cash on hand 0.12

Other bapk balances 0.43

Cash and cash equivalents in Cash flow siatement S76.87

3. Reconciliation of movamenis of cash flows arising from financing activities
. Non-corrent Cuarrent
Particalars borrowings borrowings. Total

Balance as at 1 April 2019 277195 37786 3,155.81
Cash Flow from financing activities -
Proceeds from pon-cutrent borrowing 160,00 - 100.00
Repayment of non-current borrowings {73649 - (736.49)
Net increase/(decrease) in current borrowings - 85.85 85.85
Other Borrowing Cost Paid {21.26) - (21.26)
Finance costs paid (150.68) - (150.68)
Foreign exchanpe mavement 4042 - 40.42
Totzl cash flow from financing activities {768.01) 35.85 (S5L18)
Derecognition on account of loss of control on (215.82) 0.00 (215.82)
disposal/dissolution/liquidation of subsidiaries
Other Borrowing Cost 2126 - 2126
Interest expense 150.68 - 150.68
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,966.06 463.T1 242977
* inclades other borrowing costs paid for non fuad based
credit limits.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Pipara & Co LLY
Chartered Accountants
FRN No: 107929W/W100219

Oy~

For and on behalf of the Board of Directers
Sintex-BAPL Liadted

-

CIN U25199GI2007PLC051364

{2y

Naman Pipara ul A Patel
Partner ; K Director
M.No. 140234 - A DIN: 00171198 Secretary
UDIN : 20140234AAAAHZ9159 o

2 4&1‘2 P Roondh—
Piace : Akmedshad Pradeep Shah
Date: 31-08-2020 ing Director Chief Financial Officer




Sintex-BAPL Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

1 General Information

Sintex-BAPL. Limited (“the Holding Company™) is engaged in the business of
manufacturing of custom moulding and prefab products in India and Europe and and
trading activities in USA. The registered office of the Company, near seven garnala, Kalol
{North Gujarat) and the headquarters of the Company is situated in Kalol (Gujarat).

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2020. The
consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution
of the directors on 24 July 2020.

2 Bayis of preparation

a. Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other
relevant provisions of the Act.
Details of the Group's accounting policies are included in Note 3.

b. Fanctional and presentation currency
The functional currency of the Holding Company and its Indian Subsidiaries is Indian
Rupees (Rs.), whereas the functional currency of foreign subsidiaries is Euro or USD as
per the law of respective countries. The presentation currency of the group is Indian

Rupees (Rs.). All amounts have been rounded to the nearest crores, unless otherwise
indicated.

¢. Bavsis of measurement

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for the following items:

Items ' Measurement basis
Investment in mutual fund Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
. N (“F‘{'I'P ﬂ) -
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present

value of defined benefit obligations

d. Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. T




Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Assnmptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as below:

e Estimates of useful lives and residual value of Property, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets

¢ Fair valuation of investments and determining fair value less cost of sell of the
disposal group on the basis of significant unobservable inputs
Provision and contingencies
Recognition and measurement of provisions and confingencies
Current / Deferred tax expense and recognition of MAT Credit and evaluation of
recoverability of deferred tax assets

» Measurement of employee defined benefit obligations; key actuarial assumptions

e. Meosurement of fair values

Some of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established contro] framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. This includes a financial reporting team that has overall responsibility for
overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair valuss, and
reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer.

The financial reporting team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as pricing services, is used to
measure fair values, then the financial reporting team assesses the evidence obtained from
the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of
Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be

classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market
data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability
fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred. .




i)

ii)

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in
the following notes:

Note 8 Investments
Note 38 Employee benefits
Note 44 Financial instruments

Significant Accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies (including special purpose entities) where Control
exists when the Holding Company is exposed to, or has rights, to variable returns frem its
involvement with the entity, and has the ability to affect those returns through power over
the entity. In assessing control, potential voting rights are considered only if the rights arc
substantive. The financial statements of subsidiary companies are included in these
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that

control ceases.

Upon loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary
companies, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the
subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. If the Holding Company retains any interest in
the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control

is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity accounted investee depending on the
level of influence retained.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. The financial statements of each of
the subsidiaries used for the purpose of conselidation are drawn up to same reporting date
as that of the Holding Company, i.e., year ended on 31 March 2020.

Consolidation procedure:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
holding company with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of
the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the Holding Company’s investment in each
subsidiary and the Holding Company’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

iii) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows

relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits & losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant
and equipment, are eliminated in full, except as stated in point iv)

iv) Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated

v)

financial statements. Ind AS-12 ‘Income Taxes’ applies to temporary differences that arise
from the elimination of profits and Josses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of {




(a} The amount of equity attributed to non-controlling interests at the date on which
investment in a subsidiary relationship came into existence;

(b) The non-controlling interest share of movement in equity since the date holding
subsidiary relationship came into existence;

(¢) Non-controlling interest share of net profit/ {loss) of consolidated subsidiaries for
the year is identified and adjusted against the profit after tax of the Group.

vi) The following entities are considered in the consolidated financial statements listed below:

Country of % of holding as on

Name of the company incorporation 1 March 2020

Sintex BAPL Limited India 100.00
100.00

Sintex Holding BV Netherlands
(Including its following
Subsidiaries): ) 100.00
France
A. Sintex NP SAS (including its
following 100% subsidiaries)
Up to 24" October,2019
considered as a Subsidiaries)
NP Jura
NP Vosges SAS
NP Hungaria Kft.
NP Germany GMBH
NP Tunisia SARL
. Siroco SAS
g. NP Savoi SAS (including NP Sud
SAS, 100% subsidiary)
NP Morocco SARL
ATP SAS
Sicmo SAS
NP Nord SAS
NP Polska
NP Slovakia SRO
Simonin SAS
Capelec SAS
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B. Sintex Logistics LLC {USA)

BAPL Rototech Private Limited India 70.00

II. Business Combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred.




At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes
and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102
Share-based Payments at the acquisition date; and

assets (or disposal groups} that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS
105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquirce, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as capital reserve or recognised directly in capital reserve
depending on whether there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying
the business combination as a bargain purchase. Commmon control business combinations
include transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or businesses, between entities with a
Group.

Business combinations involving entities or business under common control are accounted
using the pooling of interests method. In this method the assets and liabilities of combining
entities are reflected at their carrying values, the only adjustment to be made is to
harmonise accounting policies. The financial information in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of prior periods are restated as if the business combination had
occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the consolidated financial
statements, irrespective of the actual date of combination. However, if the business
combination has been effected after that date, the prior period information is restated only
from that date.

The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any
additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital
of the transferor is transferred to reserves.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date
of acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. —




A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the umit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised direcily in profit and
loss in the consolidated Statement of comprehensive income/Statement of Profit and Loss.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. The Group assesses promises in the
contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of transaction price is
allocated.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price as specified in the contract with the
customer. The transaction price excludes amount collected on behalf of third parties such
as Goods and Service Tax (GST), Value added tax (VAT) etc. which the Company collects
on behalf of the government. In determining the transaction price, the Group considers

below, if any:

Variable consideration:
This includes discounts, incentives, volume rebates, etc. H is estimated at contract

inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at end
of each reporting period.

Significant financing component;
Generally, the Group receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical

expedient in Ind AS 1185, the Group does not adjust the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that
the period between the transfer of the promised good to the customer and when the
customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

Consideration payable to a cusfomer:

Such amounts are accounted as reduction of transaction price and therefore, of revenue
unless the payment to the customer is in exchange for a distinet good that the customer

transfers to the Group.

Further, in accordance with Ind AS 37, the Group recognises a provision for onerous
contract when the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the
economic benefits to be received.

Contract balances:

Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services transferred to the customer e.g. unbilled revenue. If the Company performs its
obligations by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset i.e., unbilled revenue is reco lzed P -
for the earned consideration that is conditional. The contract assets are transfe 5




receivables when the rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company
issues an invoices to the customer.

Trade rececivables: A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of
consideration that is unconditional i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment
of consideration is due.

Contract liabilities: A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. Coniract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

Interest income and Dividend income:

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised using effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the amortised cost and
at the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss on the date on
which the Group’s right o receive payment is established.

Leasing
Transition

Effective 1 April 2019, Group has adopted Ind AS 116, 'Leases', applied to ail lease contracts
existing on 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the
cumulative adjustment to retained eamings, in the date of initial application. Accordingly,
comparatives for the year ended 31 March 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted.

The Group’s lease asset primarily consists of leases for buildings. The group assesses whether
a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
confract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the group assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset (ii) the group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the group has the right to direct the use of the
asset,

Company as a lessee

At the date of commencement of the lease, the group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
short-term and low value leases, the group recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date
of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the tease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are
evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate Ihat the:r
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment v ]




recoverable amount (i.e. The higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company
changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and
finance cost portion of lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Company as a lessor

At the inception of the lease, the group classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease
or a finance lease. The group recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as
income over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

- Foreign currency transaction and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies
of the Company at the exchange rates at the date of the transaction or at an average rate if
the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are transiated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise except for:

exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reciassified from equity to consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss on repayment of the monetary items.

Further, The Group had decided to continue the policy adopted for accounting for exchange
differences arising from transiation of long-term foreign cumrency monetary items
recognised in the consolidated financial statements for the period ending immediately
before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period (i.e. 31 March 2016) as
per the previous GAAP i.e. exchange differences relating to long term foreign currency
monetary items in so far as they relate to acquisition of depreciable capital assets is

asset.




In case of foreign operations whose functional currency is different from the Holding
Company’s functional currency, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations
are translated into Currency Units using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchangg rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as “foreign
currency translation reserve’ (and aitributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes
a financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit and loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation
that does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit and loss.

. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

. Operating cycle

For the purpose of current/non- current classification of assets and liabiiities, the Group
has ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months. This is based on the nature of
services and the time between the acquisition of assets or inventories for processing and
their realization in cash and cash equivalents.

. Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits .

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
cxpensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation io pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation
can be estimated reliably,

Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation
to pay further amounts.

The current service cost and interest on the net defined benefit liability / (as
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. Past service co
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immediately recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. Actuarial gains
and losses net of deferred taxes arising from experience adjustment and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in other comprehensive income in the peried n
which they arise. The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards Government
administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in consolidated statement of profit
and loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available.

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution

plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for
the Group, the recognised-asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any fuiure refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if
any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCI. The Group determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in
the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and
benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change
in benefit that relates to past service (*past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain
or {oss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises
gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs,

Other long-term employee benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-
employment benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is
measured on the basis of an annual independent actnarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method, Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in consolidated statement of
profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

Taxation

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to an item ised
directly in equity or in OCL




Income taxes
Provision for current tax is calculated on the basis of the Income tax law enacted or

substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax is provided, on temporary difference arising between the tax bases of the
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in consolidated financial statements, using
tax rates & laws that has been enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that the future tax profits will be available to utilise the same.

Deferred tax is not recognised for all taxable temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest
in joint arrangements where it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) eligible for set-off in subsequent years (as per tax laws),
is recognised as an asset by way of credit to the Consolidated Statement of Profit ard Loss
only if there is convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised by the Group. At each
Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred tax in relation to MAT Credit
Entitlement receivable is reviewed to reassure realization.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the same and when the balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
utilize all or part of the deferred tax asset. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will available to utilized the deferred tax asset.

The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the hability simultaneously. In case of deferved
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authonty on the Group.

. Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any
discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subseq




recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the
asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets.
Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. Major shut-down and overhaul
expenditure is capitalised as the activities undertaken improves the economic benefits
expected to arise from the asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognized in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under construction
account. At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of
construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
and depreciation commences. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset and any
obligatory decommissioning costs are capitalised where the asset is available for use but
incapable of operating at normal levels until a period of commissioning has been
completed. Revenue generated from production during the trial period is capitalised.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and

equipment.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses,

Intangible assets like software, brand and technical know-how which are expected to
provide future enduring economic benefits are capitalized as Intangible Assets. “Sintex”
Brand of Custom Moulding business acquired pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement
with indefinite useful lives is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when

the asset is derecognised.

» Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for :
less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is provided on straighi-line mgtho




except in case of one subsidiary which provide depreciation on furniture and fixtures,
vehicles and office equipment using Written Down Value method (WDV) over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013 except for plant and machinery. In respect of plant and machinery,
the life of the assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into
account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of
the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers
warranties and maintenance support, etc.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives on straight line method.
The amortization rates used for various intangible assets are as under:

Class of assets Years
Technical knowhow 5 to 20 years
Software 5 years

Goodwill and Brand have indefinite useful life and hence are not subjected to amortization
but tested for impairment annualily.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land is amortized over the period of the lease,
except where the lease is convertible to freehold land under lease agreements at future
dates at no additional cost.

The Group reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation methed annually and,
if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in
accounting estimate on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on the tangible fixed assets of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries has
been provided as per the estimated useful life of such assets as follows:

Class of assets Years
Buildings 15 to 60 years
Plant and machinery 03 to 40 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 to 10 years
Vehicles and aircrafts 5 to 10 years
Office equipment 3 to 10 years

. Impairment
Impairment of financial instrumenis
The Group recognises foss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
- financial assets measured at FVQOCI- debt investments.




that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or
more;
the restructuring of a loan or advance by the each entity in the Group on terms that such
entity would not consider otherwise;
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties. _
The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses,
except for bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased’ significantly since initial
recognition, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default evenis over the expected life of a financial instrument.
Twelve months expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual pericd over which the Group is exposed to credit risk. When
determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

Measurement of expecied credit losses

Expected credit losses are 2 probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group

expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet,
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the

gross carrying amount of the assets.
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at cach reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped
together into cash-generating units (CGUs), Each CGU represents the smallest group of

assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or CGUs. "”__




The recoverable amount of a CGU {or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the

asset).

The Group's corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various
CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate
asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset

belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset
or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on
a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods,
the Group reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been 2 change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories includes raw materials, finished goods, work-in-progress and stores and spares.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories
comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing
overheads incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition.
Cost of raw materials, traded goods and stores and spares are ascertained on weighted
average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability.

The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating
losses are not provided for.

When the Company expects some or zll of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provisipn is
presented in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursemenf.
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discontinued using a
current pretax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as
finance cost in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. The
estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added
to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Contingent liabilitics are not recognized in the financial consolidated statements but are
disclosed by way of notes to accounts unless the possibility of an outflow of economic
resources is considered remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in consolidated
financial statements. However, the same is disclesed, where an inflow of economic benefit

is probable,

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and deposits with banks and corporations and
bank overdrafts. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining
maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents,

Segment Reporting

The Chief Operational Decision Maker (CODM) monitors the operating results of its
business segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and perforrnance assessment. Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the CODM.

The Managing Director/ Chief Executive Officer of the Company allocate resources and
assess the performance of the Company, thus are the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM). Custom Moulding Business is identified as single operating segment for the
purpose of making decision on allocation of resources and assessing its performance.

Financial Instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are
originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised by
each entity in the Group when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. :

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financiol assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
— amortised cost;
-  FVOCI - debt investment;
—  FVOCI — equity investment; or
- FVTPL
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in
the period the Giroup changes its business model for managing financial assets. __




A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

At present, the Group does not have investments in any debt securities classified as
FVOCI.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI
(designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an
mvestment-by-investient basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described
above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial asseis: Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a
financial asset is held at a portfolic level because this best reflects the way the business is
managed and information is provided te management. The information considered

includes:
the stated policies and objectives for the portiolio and the operation of those policies in

practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related labilities or expected cash outflows or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assels;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the each entity’s
management in the Group;;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on
the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s
continuing recognition of the assets,

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance-is-
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.




Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as conmsideration for the time value of
money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs),as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the each entity in the Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:
— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest
rate features;
— prepayment and extension features; and
-~ terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets {e.g.
non-recourse features),

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest
criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset
acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that
permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual
par amount plus accrued (but unpaid} contractual interest (which may also include
reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
assets at and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
FVTPL recognised in profit or loss.

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
assets at the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by

amortised cost  impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends
investments at are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend
FVQCI clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the

investment. Cther net gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative
or it 1s designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are

measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,jare

recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabiliti
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Intergy




expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in consolidated statement of
profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

iii. Derecognition
Financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains

substantizlly all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance
sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred

assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability
with modified terms is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
consolidated balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends cither to settle them on a net basis or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.




. Sintex-BAPL Limited
- Notes to the consolidated financial statements (confinued)

- for the Year ended 31 March 2020

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

4

Al

Notes:

(@)

(if)

(ith)

Property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of carrying amount

. Freehold Leasebold o Plant and Fixtures and . ROU

Particulars land land Building equipment fitfings Vehicles Assets Tou]
Balance at 1 April 2019 81.12 5.04 650.85  2,761.74 37.21  20.90 - 3,5%6.86
Additions - 7.88 2.03 43.76 1.18 .25 23.83 78.93
Disposals - - - (22.35) - (1.78) - {24.13)
Translation exchange
differences - - 240 0.08 0.01 0.01 - 249
Derecognition on account of
loss of comtrol on disposal/ i
dissolution/liquidation of (16.97) - (427.64) (977.94) (29.65) (16.37) (1,468.36)
subsidiaries -
Balance at 31 March 2020 64.15 12.92 227.64 1,805.28 8.75 3.01 2383 314680

. Freehold Leaschold . Plant and Fixtures and . ROU
P utars Buildin - . Vehicl T
artic land land % equipment _fittings S Assets otal

Balance at 1 Apri 2019 - 0.21 282.46 942,97 29.52 1468 - 1,269.34
Depreciation for the year - 0.43 792 8224 1.37 0.65 4.00 96.62
Disposals - - - (19.40) - (1.30) - (20.70)
Impairment - - - - - - - -
Translation exchange
differences - - 0.09 0.00 .00 0.00 - 0.09
Derecognition on account of {1,015.78)
loss of control on - - {261.44) {715.88) (2593} (12.54) -
Balance at 31 March 2020 - .64 29.03 289.93 4.97 1.49 4.00 M
Carrying amounis {nef) g
At 31 March 2020 64.15 12.28 198.60 1,515.35 3.78 1.52 19.83 181882 .
Security

Refer note 18 for the property, plant and equipment which are subject to charge.

Commitments
For capital commitinents made by the Group as at the balance sheet date, Refer note 38.

Impairment of Fixed Assets
For Impairment made by group on Fixed Asseis, Refer note 47.

Leased Assets
One of the company has obtained leasehold land for lease term of 95/99 Years.

Contractual obligations
Refer Note 38 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Borrowing costs are capitatised in case of qualifying assets in accordance with Ind AS 23 * Borrowing Costs’. The Group hm

capitalised Rs. 29.86 crore as forex loss / (gain) on long term botrowing in accordance with the option obtainedfinder pg i3

Ind AS 101.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Jor the Year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

5

Capital work-in-progress

Reconciliation of carrying amount

i Capital Work-in-

Particulars progress
Balance at 1 April 2019 90.12
Additions 7.06
Adjustment -
Assets capitalised during the year (3.75)
Derecognition on account of loss of control (87.29)
on disposal/dissolution/liquidation of
subsidiaries
Balance at 31 March 202( 6.14
Carrying amounts (net)
At 31 March 2020 6.14
Goodwill
Reconciliation of carrying amount

Particulars Goodwill ~ Seedvillon Goodwilt

. Consolidation

At Cost *
Balance at 1 April 2019 91.20 100.27 191.47
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Translation exchange differences 0.06 - 0.06
Derecognition on account of loss of control
on disposal/disselution/liguidation of (71.08) (100.27) (171.35)
subsidiaries
Balance at 31 March 2020 20.18 - 20.18
Carrying amounts (net)
At 31 March 2020 20.18




Sintex-BAPL Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (confinued)

for the Year ended 31 March 2020

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

7  Other intangible assets

. Technical Computer

Particulars Knowhow software Brand value Total
At Cost
Balance at 01 April 2019 10.89 47.60 1,500.00 1,558.49
Additions - 0.09 - 0.09
Disposals - - - -
Translation exchange differences - .02 - 0.02
Derecognition on account of loss of control on - (38.86) - (38.86)
disposal/dissolution/liquidation of subsidiaries
Balance at 31 March 2020 10.89 8.85 1,500.00 1,519.74
Accumulaied amortisation
Balance at 01 April 2019 3.16 31.49 - HE5
Amortisation for the year 0.92 1.31 - 222
Impairment (Refer Note no 48) - - 300.00 800.00
Disposals - - - -
Translation exchange differences - 0.01 - 0.01
Derecognition on account of loss of control on - (27.58) - {27.58)
disposal/dissolution/liquidation of subsidiaries
Balance at 31 March 2020 4.08 5.23 800,00 809.30
Carrying amounts (net)
At 31 March 2020 6.81 3.63 700.00 710.44




Sintex-BAPL Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Jor the Year ended 31 March 2020

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

8 Loans
(Unsecured, Considerd Good)
Particulars 31 March 2020
Neon-current
Security deposits and earnest meney deposits 12.711
Other loans given 159.99
172.70
Total 172.76
9 Other financial assets
Particulars 31 March 2020
Non-current
Security deposits and earnest money deposits 0.81
0.81
Current
Others 7.14
7.14
Total 7.95
10  Current tax assets (net)
Particulars 31 March 2020
Current
Advance tax (net of provisions) 49.40
4%.40
Total 49.40)
11 Other assets
Particulars 31 March 2020
Non-current
Capital Advances 435
4.35
Current
Advance to suppliers
Considered good 24.80
Considered doubtful -
Less:- Provision for doubtful advances -
Prepaid expenses 3.54
Balances with government authorities 5.61
Export incentives receivables 79
Others 3.87

Total




Sintex-BAPL Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the Year ended 31 March 2020

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

12

13

14

Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value}

Particulars 31 March 2020
(2) Raw materials 89.51
(b) Work in progress 20.89
{c) Finished goods 37.99
{(d) Trading goods 340
(e) Stores and spares 8.21
Total 160.08
Borrowings are secured against above Inventories. Refer note 18 for details. '
Trade receivables
(Unsecured, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars 31 March 2020
Current
Trade receivables considered good 235.60
Trade receivables considered doubtful -

' 235.60
Less: allowance for doubtful debts including ECL (42.19)
Total _ 193.41
Borrowings are secured against above trade receivables. Refer note 18 for details.
Allowance for doubtful debis
Movement in allowance for doubtful debt :
Balance at the beginning of the year (24.75)
Add : Allowance for the year
Less : Derecognition on account of loss of control on 547
disposal/dissolution/liquidation of subsidiaries
Less : Bad debts written back {22.91)
Balance at the end of the year (42.1%)
Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars 31 March 2020
Balance with banks
In cwrent account 576.32
Cash on hand 0.12
Total 576.44




Sintex-BAPL Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Jor the Year ended 31 March 2020

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

15 Other bank balances

Particulars

31 March 2020

Margin money deposits:

With original maturity of less than 3 months

With original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months*
Other deposits with original maturity over 3 months but less than 12 months

0.43

Total

Note : '
* Deposit being marked as lien against bank guarantees,
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(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

16  Share capital

31 March 2020
Particulars
Numbers Amount
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 (31 March 16.10
2019: Rs. 10) each 1,6],00',000
* Essued, subscribed and paid up

Equity shares of Rs. 10 (31 March
20119: Bs. 10) each 1,60.32,000 16.03

1,60,32,004 16.03

All issued shares are fully paid up.

Reconciliation of share outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
At the commencement of the year 1,60,32,000 16.03  1,60,32,000 16.03
At the end of the year 1,60,32,000 16.03 1,6(,32,000 '16.03

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Holding Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with
regard to dividends and share in the Holding Company’s residual assets on winding up. The equity shares are
entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll
{not on show of hands) are in proportion to his/its share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Holding
Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently
payable has not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to their forfeiture.

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

31 March 2020

Particalars % of total
Numbers .
share in class

Equity share of Rs. 1 (31 March 2019: Rs. 1) each fully paid-up held by

- Sintex Plastics Technology 1,60,32,000 100.00%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (confinued)
Jor the Year ended 31 March 2020
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17 Other equity

Particulars 31 March 2620
Securities premium 132,77
Debenture redemption reserve 142.62
General reserve 366.61
Retained earnings (237.24)
Foreign currency translation reserve 52.56
Total 457.32
Securities premium
At the commencement of the year 132.717
Add: addition during the year -
Less: Premium utilised for share warrants issue expenses -
At the end of the year 132.77
Debenture redemption reserve
At the commencement of the year 142.62
Add: addition during the year from surplus in statement of profit and loss -
Less: transferred to general reserve -
At the end of the year 142.62
General reserve
At the commencement of the year 1,166.61
Add: Restatement/Reclass -
Add: transferred from debenture redemption reserve -
Less : Transfer to Retained Earnings (Refer note 48) (800.00)
366.61

At the end of the year
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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17 Other equity (continued)

Particulars 31 March 2020
Retained earnings '

At the commencement of the year 531.15
Add: '
Profit for the year {619,89)
Profit from discontiued operation 50.58
Less:

Elimination of NIEF Reserve on account of Sale (779.38)
Earlier Liability recognised in Current Year * (219.95)
Ind AS impact due to adoption of Ind AS 116 & Others 0.70
Remeasurement of post emplayment benefit obligation, net of tax (0.45)
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve -
Brand Valuation Impairment Transfer to General Reserve ** 800.00
At the end of the year {237.24)

* One of the subsidiary has recorded borrowing of Rs 219.95 Crores, being the principal
amount outstanding, towards discounting facility granted by Axis Bank Ltd. as discussed in
their respective Board Meeting dated 14th November, 2019.

** Impairment of brand of Rs 800 Cr has been debited in P&L A/c as the brand of Rs 1500 Cr
created in earlier years was credited to general reserve only.(Ref Note 48)

Foreign currency translation reserve

At the commencement of the year (4.54)
Add; Restatement/Reclass -
Add: Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of 57.10
foreign operations

At the end of the year 52.56
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued}
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18 Borrowings

Particulars 31 March 2020
Non-current? Current**
Non-current
Secured
Debentures (refer note A (i)) - 130.00
Term loan from banks (refer note A (ii)) 1.98 108.22
Term loan from financial institutions (refer note A (iii)) - -
Unsecured
Term loan from banks (refer note B (i)) - 8482
Term loan from financial institutions - -
Loan from others (refer note B (ii}) 0.85 0.49
Preference Share (refer note B (i) 49.61 -
Total non-current borrowings 52.44 323,53
Current
Secured
Debentures {refer note A (i)) - 990.61
Teitn loan from banks (refer note A (ii)) - 31.19
Term loan from financial institutions (refer note A (iii)) - 245.00
Unsecured
Term loan from banks (refer note B (i)) - 273.29
Secured
From Bank - loan repayable on demand (refer note C (i) - 443.73
Unsecured
From others { refer note D (i}) - 19.98
Total current borrowings _ - 1,053.5%0
Total 52.44 1,377.33

** Current portion is reported under "Other current financial liabilities".

#The Group has defaulted in repayment of dues to lenders in respect of its borrowings as on 31
March 2020 and as a result the account with these lenders has turned into NPA during the year
therefore the company has considered long term borrowing except where default has not been made
under the head current borrowing, The detail of default has been reported under schedule 49.




Sintex-BAPL Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the Year ended 31 March 2020
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Notes:
A  Non-current borrowings (secured):
{i) Debenture referred herein above to the extent of ;

(a) 2000, 9.36% p.a Secure Redeemable Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000,000/~ each are
redeemable at par in three equal instailments starting from 27 May 2024. Secured by way of first pari
passu charge on the property, plant and equipment’s of the Custom Moulding Undertaking ("CM")
being transferred to the Company as per Composite Scheme of Amangement {("CSA™) excluding
itemns of property, plant and equipment located at Nagpur and Kolkata.

(b) Series A 13000, Series B 13000 ,Series C 13000, 9.25% p.a unlisted Secured Redeemable Non-
convertible debentures of Rs. 100,000/~ each are redeemable en 31 December 2020, 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2022 respectively. Secured by way of first pari passu charge on the
immovable and movable property, plant and equipment’s of Custom Moulding business (“CM”) of
the Group in India and first ranking exclusive pledge on 100% shareholding of subsidiary Sintex-
BAFIL. Limited, in favor of Trusiee.

(c) 55,500, ROI 8% p.a, unlisted Secured Redeemable Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 100,000 each
are redeemable 5% at the end of 4th vear i.e.31 March 2022, 5% at the end of 5th year ,15% at the
end of 6th year ,15% at the end of Tth year ,20% at the end of §th year , 20% at the end of 9th year
and 20% at the end of 10th year i.e.3}1 March 2028 and the overall facility is subject to cap of 19%
on XIRR basis. Secured by way of first pari passu charge on the immovable and movable property,
plant and equipment's of the Company and first ranking exclusive pledge on 100% shareholding of
SBAPL, in favor of Trustee.

(ii) secured term loans from banks referred herein above to the extent of :

{a) Loan of Rs.8.26 crores is originally repayable in 24 quarierly installment, 2 of Rs.5.36 crores cach
and 22 of Rs.4.13 crores each starting from 1 April 2013 to 30 December 2019. The loan is secured
by first pari passu charge on entire property, plant and equipment's of the Company both present and
future. Rate of interest ranges from 9.5% p.a - 2.95% p.a

(b) Loan of Rs. 4.68 crores is repayable in 16 quarterly installments of Rs. 0.94 crotes each, starting 30
December 2016 to 30 September 2020,

(¢) Loan of Rs. 22,31 crores is repayable in 16 quarterly installments of Rs. 1.59 erores each, starting
from 2 May 2019 to 2 February 2023. The loan is secured by first pari passu charge on entire
property, plant and equipment’s of the Company both present and future, Rate of interest ranges from
8.95% p.a-9.60% p.a.

{d) Loan of Rs. 38 crores is repayable in 4 quarterly installments of Rs. 2 Crores Each, starting from 30th
September, 2019, next four installments are of Rs. 2.4 crores each and last four installments of
Rs.5.6 cores each at the rate of interest of 10.30%. The loan is secured by first pari passu charge
over all the current assets of the company present and future. -
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(e) Term loan of Rs. 14.15 crores crores from Yes Bank payable in 12 quarterly equal installments of
Rs. 2.08 crores commencing from 25 January 2019 at the rate of interest of 10.65%.The loan is

secured by first pari passu charge over all the current assets of the company.

(f) Loan of Rs. 100 Crores is repayable in 4 quarterly installments of Rs. 8.17 crores each starting from
30th September 2019, and next 8 quarterly instzllments of Rs. 8.37 crores each, and last instaliment
of Rs. 8.50 crore at the rate of interest of 10.70%. The loan is secured by second pari passu charge
over all moveable assets of the company both present and future, though pending security creation.

{g) Loan of Rs. 3.98 Crores is repayable in 12 equal quarterly installments of Rs. 50 lacss each after
moratorium period of 2 years from the date of first disbursement that is August 8,2017 and it carries
rate of interest of 10.45%. The loan is secured by first charge over entire current and movable fixed
asset of the Company.

(iii} Secured term loans from financial instifutions referred herein above to the extent of ;

(a) Loan of Rs. 245 crores, ROI 8% p.a , is repayable 5% at the end of 4th year i.e. 31 March 2022, 5%
at the end of 5th year ,15% at the end of 6th year ,15% at the end of 7th year ,20% at the end of 8th
year , 20% at the end of 9th year and 20% at the end of 10th year i.e. 31 March 2028 and the overall
facility is subject to cap of 19% p.a on XIRR basis. Secured by way of first pari passu charge on the
immovable and movable property, plant and equipment's of the Company, demand promissory note
and first ranking exclusive pledge on 100% sharcholding of SBAPL, in favor of Trustee

B Non-current borrowings (un-secured):
(i) Un-secured term loans from bauks referred herein above to the extent of ;

(a) Term loan of Rs. 188.47 crores from ADCB Bank payable in 2 ygarly equal installment commencing
from 5 April 2021 at the rate of interest of 6 month Libor + 3%. However as per the recall notice
from ADCB bank dated 21.10.2019 the same become due immediately.

(b) Term loan of Rs. 169.62 crores from HDFC Bank payable in 8 half yearly installment commencing
from 21 November 2018 till 20 May 2022 at the rate of interest of 6 month Libor + 3.4%.

{ii) Un-secured term loans from others and Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share referred
herein above to the extent of :

(a) Loan from others of Rs. 0.83 crores of the subsidiary BAPL Roto tech P Ltd . The rate of interest 4%
p.a.

(b) 5,000,000, 5% Cumulative Redeemable Preference share issued are cumulative with a non-
discretionary dividend of 9% per annum. As per the resolution passed in the meeting of Board of
Directors on 12 January 2013 the redemption of the preference share was extended from ﬁ'a'rc

from March, 2013 to March, 2028
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C  Current borrowings (secured):
{i) Loans from the banks repayable on demand referred herein above to the extent of:

{a) Working capital loan of Rs 441.22 crores payable on demand at the rate of interest of 9.65% to
12.50%. The loan is secured by First pari passu charge on the current assets of the Company.

(b) Working Capital Loan of Rs 2.50 Cr payable on demand at the rate of interest of 5%. The loan is
secured by first charge over entire Current & Movable Fixed Assets of a subsidiary in India i.e,
BAPL Rototech Private Limited.

D Current borrowings (un-secured):
(i) Un-secured current borrowings from others referred herein above to the extent of :
(a) Loan of Rs. 17.48 crores payable on demand

{b) Loan from others of Rs. 2.49 crores of the subsidiary BAPL Roto tech P Ltd . The rate of interest 4%
p.a.
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19 Other financial linbilities

Particulars 31 March 2020
Non-Current
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.01
Obligation under Finance Lease 702
703
Curreat
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 323.53
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 119.80
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 137.46
Security deposits taken 9.05
Acceptances and other trade arrangeimnents 268.19
Accrued payables 56.53
Arrears of dividend preference shares 17.60
Other payables (including for capital goodds and services) 1.73
933.89
Total 948.92
20 Provisions
Particulars 31 March Zﬂ&
Non-current '
Provision for gratuity (refer note 36) 15.56
Provision for leave encashment 820
23.76
Current
Provision for gratuity (refer note 36) 1.9G
Provision for leave encashment 1.00
1.90
Total 26.66

21 Trade payables

Particulars 31 March 2020
Payables to micro and small enterprises 16.31
Other trade payables 204.03

Total 220,34
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Details of Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006

Particulars 31 March 2020}
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end. 1631
Interest due thereon ' 0.45

Amount of interest paid by the Group in terms of section 16 of the MSMED,

along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the -
jappointed day during the accounting year.

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making

payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the -
period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED.

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting 0.45
year / period. .
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding

years

The disclosure in respect of the amount payable to enterprises which have provided goods and services to
the Group and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined under Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been made in the Financial statement as at 31
March 2020 based on the information received and available with the management. On the basis of such
information, no interest is payable to any micro, small and medium enterprises. Auditors have relied upon
the information provided by the management.

The Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 42,

22 Other liabilities

Particulars
Current

Customer advances
Other liabilities
Statutory liability
Total
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23 Revenue from operations
Particulars 2049-20
Sale of products
Finished goods 919.95
Traded goods -
Sale of services 0.99
920.94
Less: Commission on sales 29.38
891.56
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 1.14
1.14
Total 892.70
24 Other income
Particulars 2019-20
Interest income
- on deposits with banks 1.98
- from others 7.76
Other non-operating income 26.93
Total 36.67
25  Cost of material consumed
Particulars 2019-20
Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year 101.56
Add: Purchases during the year 483.48
Less: Inventory of materials at the end of the year 89.51
Total 493.53
26 Purchase of stock-in-trade
Particulars 2019-20
Electrical and plastic items

Total
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27 Changes in inventories of finished goods and trading goods

Particulars 201920
Inventories at the end of the year: '
Finished goods 37.99
Work in progress 20.89
Stock in trade 3.40
62.28
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 150.49
Work in progress 3591
Stock in trade 1.71
188.11
Less : exchange differences (ney) (0.65)
Total 126,48
28 Employee benefiis expense
Particnlars 2019-20
Salaries, wages and bonus 124.73
Contribution to gratuity, provident fund and other funds (Refer Note:-36)* .31
Staff welfare expenses 10.00
Total 144.04

* In Sintex BAPL holding company, Net of Employer's contribution paid by Government of India

amounting to Rs 0.03 Cr under Pradhan Mantri Rojgar Yojna.

29 Finance costs
Particulars 2019-28
Interest on borrowings
- 1o banks 168.19
- to others 2042
Interest on debentures 103.65
Other borrowing costs 21.26
Total 313.52
* Tnierest on borrowing to others is towards debt from KKR India financial services Lid & late payment
of vendors/statutory dues.

30 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars 2019-20

Depreciation of property, plant and equipments
Amortisation of other intangible assets

Total
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3 Other expenses

Particulars 2619-20
Consumption of stores and spare parts 32.52
Job work and subcontracting charges 39.40
Power and fuel 4797
Rent including lease rentals 5.84
Repairs and maintenance 5719
Legal and professional expenses 67.61
Temporary staff and security expenses 241
Insurance 4,11
Rates and taxes 102
Travelling and conveyance Expenses 8.69
Donations and contributions 0.03
Payments to auditors (refer note below) 0.54
Bad Debts 52.63
Provisions for doubtful debis and advances 2244
Communication expenscs 1.86
Advertisement and sales promotion expenses 5.33
Transportation and freight charges 36.98
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.60
General expenses 35.98
Total 3775
(i) Payment to auditors
Particulars 1019-20
Payment to auditors (exclusive of goods and service tax / service tax)
- as auditor

- Statutory audit 0.51

- Tax audit 6.03
- Reimbursement of expenses -
Total 8.54

32 Exceptional items*

Particulars 1019-20
Impairment * 800.00
(ain on sale of subsidiary ** (787.40)
Total 12.60

*One of the subsidiary has recorded impairment in intangible asset to the tune of Rs 800 Cr (Refer Note:-

48)

earned gain on sale of Investment for Rs 787.40 Cr which has been recorded as an exfEpid:

profit & loss a/c (Refer Note:- 47) !




Sintex-BAPL Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {confinued)

for the Year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

33
A

Tax expense

Income tax (income) / expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars 2019-20
Current tax expenses B
Current tax on profit for the year 0.29
Adjustments for the current tax of prior periods 0.01
0.36
Deferred tax expenses
Attributable to—
Decrease/(Increase) in deferred tax assets (111.54)
MAT credit entitlement (0.15)
(111.69)
Total (111.39)
Income tax expense / (income) recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars 2019-20
Current tax
Current tax on realised gain during the year -
Deferred tax : (refer note E)
Deferred tax benefit / (expense) on fair value of equity investments -
Deferred tax benefit / (expense) on remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) 0.27
0.27
Total 0.27
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars 2019-20
Profit before tax (73113
Tax using the Group’s statutory tax rate (184.02)
Effect of :
Tax in respect of earlier years 0.01
Non deductible expenses {5.14)
Others 71.76
Tax expense (111.39%)
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34  Discontinned operations

During the year the Group had entered into agreement to sell its entire equity holding in one of its wholly
owned subsidiary, Sintex NP SAS, to a consortium of private equity investors. Pursuant to that agreement,
the sale transaction was concluded on 24th October, 2019 and a consideration of Euroe 155 Million has been
received by its wholly owned subsidiary, Sintex Holding BV.

The break-up of the financial results of Discontinued Operations for both the years are as follows.

Analysis of the profit/(loss) from discontinued operations

Particulars 2019-20
Income
Revenue from operations 971.32
Other income 5.88
Total Income 977.20
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 355.19
Purchases of stock-in-trade 64.02
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in- progress and trading goods 448
Employee benefits expense 300.03
Finance costs 1.54
Depreciation and amortisation expense 55.12
Other expenses 135.46
Total Expenses 915.84
Profit before tax 61.36
Tax expense:
Current tax 9.90
Deferred tax 0.88
Total Tax Expense 10.78
Profit/(Loss) after tax from Discontinued operations 50,58
35  Other comprehensive income
Particulars : 2019-20
A(i) Items that wiil not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurements of defined benefit (asset) / liability (0.72)

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income -
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurements of defined benefit {asset) / liability 0.27
Exquity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income -
B(i} Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences in iranslating the financial statements of foreign operations 5710
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -

-

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, Net of tax ((A(i)+(ii)) + (B(i)+(ii)) {
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Disclosures for employee benefits

a) Defined contribution plans:

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees in respect of
its Indian subsidiaries. The assets of the plans are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustees. Where employees leave the plans prior to full vesiing of the contributions, the
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The Group makes Provident Fund, ESI Fund and Superannuation Fund coniributions to defined
contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under these schemes, the Group is required to contribute a
specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions payable to these plans by
the Group are at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. The group recognised below contributions in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Particnlars 31 March 2020
Employers Contribution to Provident Fund 6.33
Employers Contribution 16 Pension Fund 0.05
Superannuation Fund 0.09
ESIC Fund 0.90
Total 7.37
b) Defined benefit plans:

The Group sponsors funded defined benefit plans for qualifying employees in respect of its Indian
subsidiaries. The defined benefit plans are administered by a separate fund that is legally separated from
the entity. The board of the fund is composed of an equal number of representatives from both employers
and (former) employees. The board of the fund is required by law and by its articles of association to act in
the interest of the find and of all relevant stakeholders in the scheme, ie. active employees, inactive
employees, retirees, employers. The board of the fund is responsible for the investment policy with regard
to the assets of the fund.

Under the Gratuity plan, the eligible employees are entitled to post-retirement benefit at the rate of 15 days
salary for each year of service until the retirement age of 60 (58 years for remaining business ) subject 1o
ceiling of Rs. 0.20 cores. The vesting period for Gratuity as payable under The Payment of Gratuity Act is
5 years. Under the Compensated absences plan, leave encashment is payable 1o all eligible employees on
separation from the Group due to death, retirement, superannuation or resignation. At the rate of daily

salary, as per current accumulation of leave days.

The defined benefit pension plans requires contributions from employees. Contributions are in the
following two forms; one is based on the number of years of service and the other one is based on a fixed
percentage of salary of the employees. Note 2(viii) describes change in accounting i
following the adoption of the amendments to Ind AS 19.
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The plans in India typically expose the Group to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk,
longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a
discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on governmeni bond yields; if the retum on plan asset is
below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Cumrently the plan has a relatively
balanced investment in equity securities and debt instruments.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however,
this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt
investments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caleulated by

reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during
and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the future salaries of plan participants, As such, an increase in the|
salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The risk relating to benefits to be paid to the dependents of plan members (widow and orphan benefits) is
re-insured by an external insurance company. No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these
employees,

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit
obligation were carried out at 31 March 2020. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the
related current service cost and past service cost, is determined based on actuarial valuation and is
meastred using the projected unit credit methed, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to
additional units of employees benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to buildup the final
obligation.

A.  Gratuity

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of actuarial valuation were as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2020
Discount rate 6.55% - 7.65%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 6% - 7%
Attrition rate 3% - 25% at
younger ages

reducing to 1% -

5% at older ages

Mortality rate Indian assured
lives mortality

(2006-08)

ultimate
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Amount recognised in Statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2020
Current service cost L8l
Past service cost and (gain)/loss on settlements -
Net interest expense 0.98
Component of defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of 2.79
Profit and Loss

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability:
Retum on plan assets {exchuding amounts included in net interest

expense) 0.11
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial 1.09
assumptions _ )
Actuarial gains and losses arising from change in (0.00)
demographic assumption .
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience adjustments ©.03)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 117

comprehensive income i}

Total ' 3.97

The current service cost and net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employee benefit
expense' line item in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

The amount included in balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit
plans are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2020
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 18.58
Fair value of plan assets 112
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 17.46
Non-current 15.60

Current 1.86
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Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2020
Cpening defined benefit obligation 17.63
Transferred pursuant to scheme of arrangement -
Current service cost 1.81
Interest cost 1.26
Remeasurement (gains)/losses:

Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial 1.09

assumptions

Actuarial gains and losses arising from change in (0-00}

emographic assumption

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments 0.03)
Past Service Cost -
Benefits paid (3.18)
Closing defined benefit obligation 18.58
Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
FParticulars 31 March 2020
Opening fair vatue of plan assets 374
Transferred pursuant to scheme of arrangement -
Interest income 0.28
Return on plan assets less loss on investments (excluding amounts {0.10)
included in interest income)
Remeasurement - Actuarial {gains)/losses -
Contributicn from the employer 0.39
Transfer of assets -
Benefits paid (3.18)
Closing fair value of plan assets 112
Composition of the plan asscts
Particulars 31 March 2020
Insurance policy 98% - 100%
Bank balance 0% -2%
Total 100%
Sensitivity analysis:

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate,
expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
ing period,

reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions ecccwrring at the end of the re
while holding all other assumptions constant.
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Particulars 31 March 2020

Increase Decrease

Discount rate (0.5% movement) 17.937 19.11
withdrawal rate (0.5% movement ) 13.37 17.60
Future salary growth (0.5% movement) 19.069 17.78

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another
as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit
obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period,
which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance
sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior
years.

Each year an Asset-Liability-Matching study is performed in which the consequences of the strategic
investment policies are analyzed in terms of risk-and-return profiles. Investment and contribution policies
are integrated within this study.

The expected benefit payments is as follows:

Defined benefit obligation 31 March 2020
Less than 1 year 1.82
Between 1-2 years L.67
Between 2-5 years 5.11
Over 5 years 8.23
Total 16.84

B Other long term ¢employee benefits:

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of actuariai valuation were as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2020
Discount rate 6.35% - 7.65%
salary growth rate 6% - %

5% - 25% at

younger ages
reducing to 1% -

ithdrawal rate
Wi W 8 5% at older ages
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A7

Earnings per share
Particulars 2019-320
Face value per equity share (in Rs.) 1
{a) Profit for the year atiributabie to equity shareholders from: (569.16)
(i} contiming operations (619.74)
(ii) discontinued opcrations 50.58
(iif) continuing and discontinued operations (569.16)
(b) Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 1,60,32,000
) Equity shares issued during the year -
(d) Increase in number of shares on conversion of share warrants -
(e) Number of equity shares at the end of the year 1,60,32,000
() Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic 1,60,32,000
earnings per share
(g) Shares deemed to be issued on conversion of FCCB -
(h) Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted
earmnings per share 1,60,32,000
Earnings per equity share {in Rs) (from continuing operation)
- Basic earnings per share -386.56
- Diluted earnings per share ~-386.56
Earnings per equity share (in Rs) (from discontinued operation)
- Basic earnings per share 3155
- Diluted eamings per share 3155
Eamings per equity share (in Rs) (from continuing operations &
discontinued operations)
- Basic earnings per share -355.01
-355.01

- Diluted earnings per share

Notes:

A Weighted average number of equity shares is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of
the year adjusted by the number of equity shares issued during the year multiplied by the time weighting
factor. The time weighting factor is the number of days for which the specific shares are outstanding as a

proporticn of total number of days during the year.

Leases as lessee

Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars Note 31 March 2020
(ii)} Other expenses
Office rent _ 31 5.84
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Future minimum rental payables under non-cancellable operating lease

Particulars 31 March 1620
Oto 1 year 791
1 to 5 year 25.00
more than 5 year 6.40
Contingent liabilities and commitments
{to the extent not provided for)
Particulars 31 March 2020
Contingent liabilities and commitments
a. Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts _

(i) Indirect tax matters (refer note (i) below) 1.34

(ii) Direct tax matters (refer note (i) below) 0.33
b Legal Cases

In respect of Matters Going against the company towards Legal Cases 8.65
¢  Guarantees excluding financial guarantees :

Outstanding bank guarantees 3589
d Commitments

7.74

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for

Notes
i) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of

cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgments/decisions
pending with various forums/authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and
has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where

applicable, in its consolidated financial statements.

Contingent liabilities
Particulars 31 March 2020
A Sales tax/GST
For non receipt of C forms and H form in respect of assessment years -
2010-11, 2012-13, 2013 -14 and 2014-15
1.43

In respect of matters decided against the Group, for which the Group is

in appeal with higher authorities/others.

B Work Contract Act

In respect of matters decided against the Company, for which the

Company is in appeal with higher authorities.
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C

(ii)

Excise duty:*

In respect of matters decided against the Group, for which the Group is ¢.19
in appeal with higher authorities.

Claims against Group not acknowledged as debts

In respect of matters where the Group has received favourable orders -
from the First Appellate authorities but the Central Excise and Customs

Department is pursuing further with higher Appeliate authorities

Direct taxes :
In respect of matters decided against the Group, for which the Group is 0.33
In appeal with higher authorities.

Guarantees excluding financial guarantees
Outstanding bank guarantees 35.89

Legal Cases
In respect of Matters Going against the company towards Legal Cases 8.65

The Heonourable Supreme Court of India vide its order dated 28th February, 2019 held that ‘Basic Wages’
for the contribution towards Provident Fund (PF) should only exclude [in addition to specific exclusions
under Section 2(b)(ii) of the Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952]:

a) amounts that are payable to the employee for undertaking work beyond the normal work which he/she is
otherwise required to put in and

b} allowances which are either variable or linked to any incentive for production resulting in greater output
by an employee and that the allowances are not paid across the board to all employees in a particular
category or were being paid especially to those who avail the opportunity.

With reference to the above mentioned judgment, the Group’s Management is of the view that there is
considerable uncertainty around the timing, manner and extent in which the judgment will be interpreted
and applied by the regulatory authorities. Management is of the view that any incremental outflow in this
regard can only be determined once the position being taken by the regulatory authorities in this regard is
known and the Management is able to evaluate all possible courses of action avatlable.

Accordingly, provision for the month of March 2020 has been recognized in the Financial Statements in this
regard.

A Capital Commitments
(i} Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 7.74

and not provided for




Sintex-BAPL Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Jfor the Year ended 31 March 2020

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores})

3% Segment reporting

(=)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(<)

The Managing Director/ Chief Executive Officer of the Company allocate resources and assess the
performance of the Company, thus are the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Custom Moulding
Business is identified as single operating segment for the purpose of making decision on allocation of

resources and assessing its performance.

Information about geographical areas

Revenue from External Customers

Particulars 31 March 2020
India ' 845.70
Qutside India 47.00
Total 892.70

Revenue from external customer is allocated based on the location of customers,

Non - Current Assets

Particulars 31 March 2020
India 2,787.58
Outside India 33.76
Total 2,821.34

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress, intangible assets and

capital advances. It is allocated based on the geographic location of the respective assets.

Information about major customers
There is no customer representing more than 10% of the total balance of trade receivables.
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- Notes to the consolidated financial statements (confinued)

" for the Year ended 31 March 2020
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Al

Fair value measuremenis
Accounting Classification & Fair Value Hierarchy

Financial Assets and Liabilities :

The Group principal financial assets include investments, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances,
loans, derivative assets and other financial assets. The Company’s principal financial ligbilities comprise of borrowings, trade
payables, derivative liabilities and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company’s operations and projects.

Fair Value Hierarchy :
The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are cither
observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels.

Level 1 : It includes investment in equity shares and mutual fund that has a quoted price and which are actively traded on the
stock exchanges. It is been valued using the closing price as at the reposting period on the stock exchanges.

Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrusient are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 : These instruments are valued based on significant unobservable inputs whereby firure cash flows are discosgsted
using appropriate discount rate.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs
used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair vailue hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level gt that is
significant to the entire measurement.

Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2020
Fair ¥aloe
Level 2 - Level 3 -
Particulars FVIPL Fvrocr Amerised oo Level - o oificant  Significant
cost Quoted price in Tosal
. observable umobservable
active markets inputs inputs

Investments - - - - - - - -
Trade receivables - - 193.41 193.41 . - - -
Cash and cash - - 576.44 576.43 - - - -
equivalents
Other bank balance - - 0.43 043 - - - -
Loans - “ 172.70 17270 - - - -
Other financial assets - - 7.95 795 - - - -
Total Financial - - 950.93 950.93 - - - -
assets
Bomrowings (incl. - - 2429.77  2429.77 - - - -
current maturities}
Trade payable - - 22034 22034 - - - -
Other financial - - 617.39 617.39 - - - -
liabilities =
Total Financial - - 326750 326750 - -

liabilities




" Sintex-BAPL Limited

- Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

" for the Year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

Financial instroments risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade and other payables, The Group’s finarcial assets
comprise mainly of investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, loans, trade receivables and other

The Group is exposed to Market risk, Credit risk and Liquidity risk. The management oversight in the area of financial risks
and controls. 1t also covers policies on specific risk areas such as currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of

43
receivables.
surplus funds.
{i} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to perform or fail to pay amounts due
causing financial loss to the Group. The potential activities where credit risks may arise include from cash and cash
equivalents, derivative financial instruments and security deposits or other deposits and principally from credit exposures to
customers relating te outstanding receivables. The maximum credit exposure associated with financial assets is equal to the
carrying amount. Details of the credit risk specific to the Group along with relevant mitigation procedures adopted have been
enumerated below:

Trade and other receivables

The average credit period on sales of goods is 0 to 180 days. Credit Risk arising from trade receivables is managed in
accordance with the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on a detailed study of credit worthiness and accordingly individual credit limits are
defined/modified. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large. There is no
customer representing more than 10% of the total balance of trade receivables.

Age of receivables

Particulars 31 March 2020
Not Due 12.93

0-3 Months 76.10

3-6 Months 16.46

6-12 Months 7.59

more than 365 days 122 52

Total 235.60

The Holding Company and its subsidiaries has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaulis. The
Holding Company and its subsidiaries uses publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its -
major customers. The Holding Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. The
above receivables which are past due but not impaired are assessed on case-to-case basis. Management is of the view that
these financial assets are not impaired as there has not been any adverse change in credit quality and are envisaged as
recoverable based on the historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk, including undeslying
customers’ credit ratings, if they are available. There are no other classes of financial assets that are past due but not impaired.




. Sintex-BAPL Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

" for the Year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

(i)

Movements in expected credit loss allowance

Particulars 31 March 2020
Balance at the begmning of the year 24.75
Movements in allowance 2292
Derecognition on account of loss of control

on disposal/dissoluticn/liquidation of (5.47)
subsidiaries

Balance at the end of

the year 4220

The maximum exposurs to credit risk for trade and other receivables by geographic region was as follows:

Particulars _Carrying amount

31 March 2020
India 211.99
Other regions 23.61
Total 235.60
Other financial assets

Other financial assets includes loan to employees, security deposits, investmients, cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balance, advances to employees etc.

» Cash and cash equivalents and Bank deposits are placed with banks having good reputation and past track record with
adequate credit rating.

 The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by
intemational credit-rating agencies.

» The Group has given security deposit to various government authorities. Being government authorities, the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries does not have exposure te any credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with fnancial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk due to bank borrowings end
trade and other payables. The Group measures risk by forecasting cash flows. The Group approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group reputation. The Group ensures that it has sufficient fund 10 meet expected
operational expenses, servicing of financial obligations. -

Further, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries has also tied-up additional sources of liquidity to meet the liabilities during
the respective annual years which has ensured that the Group has a clean track record with no adverse events pertaising to
liquidity risk.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractal maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and
undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements. .




- Sintex-BAPL Limited

- Notes to the consolidated financial statements {confinued)

" for the Year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

Coniractual maturities

As at 31 March 2020 Carrying Less than More than 12
amount Total

12 months months
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bomrowings (incl. 2429717 242977 2737733 5244
cwrent maturities)
Trade payabies 220.34 220.34 220.34 -
Other financial liabilities 617.39 617.39 610.36 7.03
Total 3267.50 3267.50 3,208.03 59.47

(i)  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — wikl

affect the Group's income or the valug of its holdings of financial instruments.

(a) Currency risk

The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fiuctuations
arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilizing forward foreign exchange coniracts
and currency options taken at the time of initiation of the booking by the management. Such decision is taken after
considering the factors such as upside potential, cost of structure and the downside risks etc. Quarterly reports are submitied
to Management Committee on the covered and open positions and MTM valuation. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Unhedged foreign currency exposure

. 31 March 2020

Farticulars USD __ EUR INR Others Total
Financial assets
Investments - - - - -
Trade receivables 23.61 - 169.80 - 193.41
ICash and cash 4,70 48213 8961 - 576.44
equivalents
Bank balances other - - 0.43 - 0.43
than {iii) above
Loans - - 17270 - 17270
Other financial assets - - 7.95 - 7.95
Total Financial 2831 48213 440.49 - 950.93
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 36223 9.60 2057.94 - 2,429.77
Trade payables 2.83 0.11 217.40 - 220.34
Other financial 17.37 - 600.02 - 617.39
liabilities
Total Financial 3s2.43 971 2,875.36 - 3.267.50
liabilities
Net exposure to 354,12  (472.42) 2,434.87 - 2,316.57
foreign currency *




. Sintex-BAPL Limited

- Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

" for the Year ended 31 March 2020
{Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

ii) Sensitivity analysis
Impact on
Particulars profit
before tax
31 March 2020
Foreign Currency Exposure
- increase by 1% (1.1%8)
- decrease by 1% 1.18
b) Price risk
i} Exposure .

The Group's exposure to price risk in the investment in mutual funds and equity shares arises from investments held by the
Group and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through profit or loss including GCl. Management monitors the prices
closely to mitigate its impact on profit and cash flows.

The investments in mutual fimds are designated as FVTPL while investment in equity shares are designated as FVOCL

¢} Interest rate risk

The Group is expesed to interest rate risk because fimds are borrowed at both fixed and floating interest rates. Interest rate
risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The Group has exposure to interest
rate risk, arising principally on changes in PLR and LIBOR rates. The Group uses a mix of interest rate sensitive financial
instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day operations like non-convertible debentures and
short term loans. The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate
borrowings Hedging activities are evaluated reguiarly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the
most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied. :

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Group's interest - bearing financial instrument as reported to management is as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2020

Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 1.24

Financial liabilitics 1,365.61

Variable-rate instruments

Financial assets -

Financial liabilities 1,064.16

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible change i interest rates. :
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- Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued}

" for the Year ended 31 March 2020
{Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

Sensitivity analysis
impact on
Particulars profit
before tax
31 March 2020
Interest rate
- increase by 50 basis points 532
- decrease by 50 basis points (5.32)

(iv) Capital management
For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes paid-up equity capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it
maintains a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of
the business, Management monitors the return on capital, to equity share holders.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as a going concem while maximising the
return to stakeholders throngh the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of
net debt and total equity of the Group.

Particulars 31 March 2020
Total borrowings* 2,429.77
Less; cash and bank balances {576.87)
Adjusted net debt 1,852.90]
Total equity 477.46
| Adjusted net debt to equity rat 3.88

* Includes non-current borrowings, current borrowings and current maturities of non-current borrowings. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2020.
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Non-controlling Interest represents the non-controlling's share in equity of the subsidiaries as below:

Particulars 31 March 2020
- Share in equity capital 4.65
- Share in reserves and surplus (0.74)
- Share in profit for the year 0.15
- Share in other comprehensive income (.04
4.11

45 Reconciliation of the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contragted

46

47

price:

FParticulars 31 March 2020
Revenue as per contracted price 892,70
Adjusiments

Discounts / rebates / incentives -
Sales returns / credits / reversals -
Deferrment of revenue -
Any other adjustments -

Revenue from contract with customers 892,70

Disaggregation of revenue

The management determines that the segment information reported under Note 42 Segment reporting is sufficient to
meet the disclosure objective with respect to disaggregation of revenue under Ind AS 115 Revenue from contract
with Customers. Hence, no separate disclosures of disaggregated revenues are reported.

As at 31 March 2020, Sintex BAPL Ltd of the Group has foreign currency receivables aggregating Rs. 14.20 Crores
which are outstanding for a period greater than nine months. As per Reserve Bank of India’s (RBI) circular on

Foreign Exchange Management (Export of Goods & Services) Regulation, 2015 (*FEMA Guidelines”), the exports -
made by the Company shall be realized and repatriated to India within nine months from the date of export of goods

or services rendered. Out of the total receivables of Rs. 14.20 Crores, the Company has intimated to Authorised
Dealer (AD) Bank for condonation of delay for the amounts aggregating to Rs. 6.48 Crores. For the remaining
balance, the Company is in process of informing to AD Bank for condonation of delay.

During the year the Group had entered into agreement to sell its entire equity holding in one of its wholly owned
subsidiary, Sintex NP SAS, to a consortium of private equity investors. Pursuant to that agreement, the sale
transaction was concluded on 24th October, 2019 and a consideration of Euro 155 Million has been received by its
wholly owned subsidiary, Sintex Holding BV. Out of the said proceeds Euro 55 miilion are lying with the bank
accounts held under the name of the said subsidiary as on 31.03.2020, as per management representation. The
Consolidated Financial statements for the Year ended on 31st March,2020 have been restated (Continuing &
Discontinued Operations). Further on account of this sale the group has earned gain on sale of Investment for Rs
787.40 Cr which has been recorded as an exceptional item in profit & loss a/c. [ T
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Sintex BAPL Limited holding Company has accounted for the *Sintex’ Brand in the year ended 31 March 2017 at
fair value based on approved court scheme. During the year Company has obtained independent valuation report for
impairment testing of 'Sintex' (Brand) having indefinite useful life relating to the recoverable value of the ‘Sintex’
brand, as owned by the Company and recognized as an indefinite life intangible asset. During the year ie. in
October 2019, the management had disposed its entire equity holding in Sintex NP S8AS, a wholly-owried step down
subsidiary, whose estimated future revenues were originally included for determination of the recoverabie value of
the brand. An independent assessment through an authorized valuer reflected the current value of the said brand at
Rs. 700 crores; resultantly the company has recognized an impairment loss of Rs. 800 Crore to reflect the carrying
value of the brand. We have relied upon the report of the independent valuer, being a subject matter expert.

The holding company has defaulted in repayment of principal and interest payments to banks,financial institutions
and debenture holders and the period and amount of continuing default as on the Balance sheet date are as under:

(Rs. in Crares)
. Overdue/Default* :
Particulars Principal | Interest Total Overdue P“‘N
Shown UEqEr Cur;sgt Borrowlng_ T
Privately Placed NCD Rs 200 Cr - 14.16 14.16 [27.08.2019-31.03.2020
Debantures : KKR Facility
BOI AXA Corporate Credit Spectrum Fund - 2.51 2.51 |31.12.2019-31.03.2020
KKR India Debt Opportunities Fund II - 2.01 2.01 [31.12.2019-31.03.2020
KKR India Financial Private Limited - 2.63 2.63 |31.12.2019-31.03.2020
L&T finance Ltd - 6.76 6.76 |31.12.2019-31.03.2620
Term Loans b
KKR India Financial Private Limited - 6.14 6.14 |31.12.2019-31.03.2020 |
HDFC Bank 13.32 1.46 14.78 [01.10.2019-31.03.2020
RBL Bank 30.51 9.68 40.19 [31.08.2019-31.03.2020
Yes Bank - 0.63 0.63 §01.11.2019-31.03.2020
HDFC ECB UnSecured Loan 28.27 4.69 32.96 |21.11.2019-31.03.2020
ADCB Unsecured loan 188.48 920 197.68 [08.10.2019 & recall
notice dated 21.10.2019
Working Capital
SBICC 132.82 6.34 139.16 |31.05.2019-31.03.2020
BOB CC 76.36 12.83 89.19 131.05.2019-31,03.2020
Yes CC & WCTL _ 29.73 1.84 31.57 {31.05.2019-31.03.2020
HDFC CC 6.27 - 6.27 |31.05.2019-31.03.2020
RBL CC 17.19 2.85 20.04 [31.08.2019:31.03.2020 |-
Total (A) 522.95| 83.73 606.68 AT

IR
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(Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)

30
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Shown Under other financial Liabilities

DB Bank (Un-Secured) 49.98 4,93 5491 |18.05.2019-31.03.2020
Axis Bank (Un-Secured) 218.21 14.88 233.09 |30.06.2019-31.063.2020
Total (B) 268.19 19.80 288.00

Grand Total 791.14 | 103.53 894.68

* Overdue computed as per company's working

“The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and
slowdown of economic activity. In many countries, businesses are being forced to cease or limit their operations for
long or indefinite period of time. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, have triggered significant
disruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown. The Group operations were suspended in
all the plants during lock down period of March-20 & April 20 and have resumed post lockdown: as per govermment
directives/restrictions on account of COVID 19. The impact of covid-19 may be different from than estimated as at
the date of approval of these financials results and the Group will continue to closely monitor the developments.
Though a definitive assessment of the impact is not pessible in view of the high uncertain economic environment
and the scenario is stilt evolving,

Sintex BAPL Limited (holding company), has reversed the deferred tax liability to reflect the net deferred tax assets
position, being available for offset between four to twelve years. Despite ongeing financial difficulties experienced
by the company, the management is of the view that with the turnaround of business the said credit shal] be
available to the company. Similarly, MAT credit is recognized as deferred tax asset by the Company which is
available for offset between four to twelve years. Despite ongoeing financial difficulties experienced by the
Company, the management is of the view that with the turnaround of business, the said credit shall be available to
the company.

Sintex BAPL Limited (holding company), has not transferred any amount to ‘Debenture Redemption Reserve’ on
account of net loss position during the year.

During the year, the Group had identified inventories which did not meet the quality parameters and were rendered
unusable. These stocks were either scrapped off during the year or recognized at cost or NRY, whichever is less.

Sintex BAPL Limited (holding company),had obtained an additional working capital loan of Rs, 130 crores from &
lender, of which Rs. 98 crores out of this was placed as inter corporate deposit (ICDs) with Sintex Industries
Limited (SIL) on which interest has been accrued and is pending recovery.

Sintex BAPL Limited (holding company),has neither provided not spent any amourt towards Corporate Social
Responsibility on account of liquidity & cash flow problems.

Sintex BAPL Limited (holding company),has recorded borrowing of Rs. 219.94 Crores (amount as at 30th
September, 2019) towards discounting facility sanctioned by Axis Bank Limited vide sanction letter dated 11th
September, 2017 by adjusting reserves and surplus, for the value of principal outstanding, since it pertains to earlier
years. Interest on the same has been provided in profit and loss account and out of which Rs. 89.07 crores pertains
to earlier years. The said amount has been disclosed as Prior Period Expenses on the face of e Statgmeg of Profjt
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Sintex-BAPL Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Jor the Year ended 31 March 2020

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Crores)
57 As per the management, Group is in the process of resolving the liquidity & cash flow issues by identifying &

disinvesting assets strategically and hence has a positive outlook towards the future cash flows & turnaround.
Accordingly, the accompanying reports have been prepared on a going concern basis, by the Group.

58 As BAPL consolidation is prepared for first time and hence previous year figure has not been provided.

As per our report of even date attached

For Pipara & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Sintex-BAPL. Limited
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Fartner Director
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